
1 

HALTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

 
 

 
Municipal Building, 

Kingsway, 
Widnes. 

WA8 7QF 
 

10 October 2017 
 

 
 
 

 
TO:  MEMBERS OF THE HALTON 
 BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend an Ordinary Meeting of the Halton 
Borough Council to be held in the Council Chamber, Runcorn Town Hall on 
Wednesday, 18 October 2017 commencing at 6.30 p.m. for the purpose of 
considering and passing such resolution(s) as may be deemed necessary or 
desirable in respect of the matters mentioned in the Agenda. 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 Chief Executive 



2 

-AGENDA- 
 

Item No. Page No. 
  
1. COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

SEE MINUTE 
BOOK 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

3. THE MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

5. LEADER'S REPORT 
 

 

6. MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

SEE MINUTE 
BOOK 

 a) 20 July 2017    

   

 b) 21 September 2017    

   

7. MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

SEE MINUTE 
BOOK 

8. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 8 
 

 

9. MATTERS REQUIRING A DECISION OF THE COUNCIL 
 

 

 a) 2017/18 Revised Capital Programme (Minute EXB40 refers)   1 - 8 
   

Executive Board considered the attached report. 
 
RECOMMENDED: That the revisions to the Council’s 
2017/18 Capital Programme set out in paragraph 3.2  be 
approved. 
 

 

 b) Murdishaw Regeneration (Minute EXB 44 refers)   9 - 12 
   

Executive Board considered the attached report. 
 
RECOMMENDED: That Council amend the Capital 
Programme to include £46,000 for the Murdishaw Estate 
Regeneration Programme to provide the Council’s 
contribution to the actions and activities outlined in the report, 
to be funded from the Capital Receipt received for the Jolly 
Brewer Pub. 
 

 

 c) Mersey Gateway/Silver Jubilee Bridge RUCSO   13 - 36 

   

 d) Transport for the North – Consideration of draft Regulations   37 - 40 

   

10. MINUTES OF THE POLICY AND PERFORMANCE BOARDS 
AND THE BUSINESS EFFICIENCY BOARD 

SEE MINUTE 
BOOK 

 a) Children, Young People and Families    



3 

   

 b) Employment, Learning, Skills and Community    

   

 c) Health    

   

 d) Safer    

   

 e) Environment and Urban Renewal    

   

 f) Corporate Services    

   

 g) Business Efficiency Board    

   

11. COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

SEE MINUTE 
BOOK 

 a) Development Control    

   

 b) Regulatory    

   

 c) Appeals Panel    

   

12. NOTICE OF MOTION -PUBLIC SECTOR PAY 
 

41 - 42 

13. NOTICE OF MOTION - UNIVERSAL CREDIT 
 

43 - 44 

14. NOTICE OF MOTION - MODERN DAY SLAVERY 
 

45 - 46 

15. PART II   
 

 

  In this case Council has a discretion to exclude the 
press and public and, in view of the nature of the business to 
be transacted, it is RECOMMENDED that under Section 
100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, having been 
satisfied that in all the circumstances of the case the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following item of business 
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A to the Act. 

 

Please note that if this resolution is passed, members of 
the press and public will be asked to leave the room 
prior to the consideration of the following business. 

 

16. MATTERS REQUIRING A DECISION OF THE COUNCIL  

 a) Acquisition of Broseley House, Widnes (Minute EXB 46 
refers)   

47 - 50 



4 

  Executive Board considered the attached Part II report. 
 
RECOMMENDED: That Council approve the variation to the 
Capital Programme of £1.19 million to cover the costs 
outlined in Sections 2.1, 2.2 and 2.3 of the report. 

 



 
REPORT TO: Council 
 
DATE: 18 October 2017 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Operational Director – Finance 
 
PORTFOLIO: Resources 
 
SUBJECT: 2017/18 Revised Capital Programme 
 
WARD(S): Borough-wide 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To seek approval to a number of revisions to the Council’s 2017/18 

capital programme.  
 
2.0 RECOMMENDED: That the revisions to the Council’s 2017/18 capital 

programme set out in paragraph 3.2 below, be approved. 
 
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
  
3.1 On 21 September 2017 Executive Board received a report of spending 

against the Council’s revenue budget and capital programme as at 30 
June 2017. A number of revisions to the 2017/18 capital programme were 
recommended for approval by Council as outlined below.   

3.2 The Council’s 2017/18 capital programme has been revised to reflect a 
number of changes in spending profiles and funding as schemes have 
developed. These are reflected in the revised capital programme 
presented in Appendix 1. The schemes which have been revised within 
the programme are as follows 
 

1. Brindley Café Extension 

2. Open Spaces Schemes 

3. Children’s Playground Equipment 

4. Upton Improvements 

5. The Glen Play Area 

6. Runcorn Hill Park 

7. Crow Wood Play Area 

8. Peelhouse Lane Cemetery Enabling Works 

9. Pheonix Park 

10. Victoria Park Glass House 

11. Sandymoor Playing Fields  

12. Landfill Tax Credit Schemes 

13. 3MG 

14. Widnes Waterfront 

15. Johnsons Lane Infrastructure 

16. Decontamination of Land 

Page 1 Agenda Item 9a



17. Linnets Clubhouse  

18. Former Crosville Site 

19. Signage at the Hive 

20. Advertising Screen at The Hive 

21. Former Simms Cross Caretakers House 

22. Development Costs – Mersey Gateway 

23. Loan Interest during Construction – Mersey Gateway 

24. Bridge & Highway Maintenance 

25. STEPS Programme 

26. Silver Jubilee Bridge – Major Maintenance 

27. Vine Street Reconfiguration 

28. Disabled Facilities Grant 

29. Capital Repairs – Schools 

30. Asbestos Management 

31. Basic Need Projects 

32. Lunts Heath Primary School 

33. Fairfield Primary School 

34. Weston Point Primary School 

35. Small Capital Works - Schools 

4.0 POLICY AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
5.1 There are no direct implications; however, the capital programme 

supports the delivery and achievement of all the Council’s priorities. 
 
6.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
6.1 There are a number of financial risks within the capital programme. 

However, the Council has internal controls and processes in place to 
ensure that spending remains in line with budget. 

 
6.2 In preparing the 2017/18 budget and capital programme, a register of 

significant financial risks was prepared which has been updated as at 30 
June 2017. 

 
7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
7.1 None. 
 
8.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1072 
 
8.1 There are no background papers under the meaning of the Act.

Page 2



APPENDIX 1 
Capital Expenditure to 30 June 2017 
 

Directorate/Department 
 

Actual 
Expenditure 

to Date 
 
 
 

£’000 

2017/18 Cumulative Capital Allocation 

 
Capital 

Allocation 
2018/19 

 
 
 

£’000 
 

 
Capital 

Allocation 
2019/20 

 
 
 

£’000 
 

Quarter 1 
 

£’000 

Quarter 2 
 

£’000 

Quarter 3 
 

£’000 

Quarter 4 
 

£’000 

Enterprise Community & 
Resources Directorate 

       

        

Community and Environment         

Stadium Minor Works 0 0 0 0 30 30 30 

Brindley Café Extension 0 0 0 0 80 0 0 

Norton Priory 0 0 60 60 348 0 0 

Norton Priory Biomass Boiler 0 0 0 0 107 0 0 

Open Spaces Schemes  90 100 200 300 602 0 0 

Children’s Playground Equipment 0 0 25 35 55 110 65 

Upton Improvements 0 0 0 0 0 13 0 

The Glen Play Area 0 0 0 0 25 18 0 

Runcorn Hill Park 5 0 50 60 75 75 50 

Crow Wood Play Area 0 0 75 150 450 60 5 

Runcorn Cemetery Extension 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 

Peelhouse Lane Cemetery 0 0 50 100 350 750 296 

Peelhouse Lane Cemetery – 
Enabling Works 

0 0 20 30 33 0 0 

Pheonix Park 0 0 0 0 110 11 0 

Victoria Park Glass House 0 0 5 15 150 120 10 

Sandymoor Playing Fields 24 50 100 350 600 500 500 

Widnes Recreation 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 

P
age 3



Directorate/Department 
 

Actual 
Expenditure 

to Date 
 
 
 

£’000 

2017/18 Cumulative Capital Allocation 

 
Capital 

Allocation 
2018/19 

 
 
 

£’000 
 

 
Capital 

Allocation 
2019/20 

 
 
 

£’000 
 

Quarter 1 
 

£’000 

Quarter 2 
 

£’000 

Quarter 3 
 

£’000 

Quarter 4 
 

£’000 

Landfill Tax Credit Schemes 0 0 0 0 160 340 340 

Litter Bins 0 0 0 0 20 20 20 

        

ICT & Support Services        

ICT Rolling Programme 379 379 620 860 1,100 1,100 1,100 

        

        

Economy, Enterprise & Property        

Castlefields Regeneration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

3MG 29 29 3,030 4,400 4,591 200 0 

Widnes Waterfront 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 0 

Johnsons Lane Infrastructure 0 0 66 66 66 0 0 

Decontamination of Land 0 0 10 40 50 0 0 

SciTech Daresbury – EZ Grant 0 0 200 483 483 0 0 

Venture Field 6 6 6 6,000 6,000 0 0 

Linnets Clubhouse 189 189 1,296 1,379 1,379 43 0 

The Croft 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 

Former Crosville Site 860 860 900 1,000 1,150 234 0 

Signage at The Hive 0 0 77 87 87 0 0 

Advertising Screen at The Hive 0 0 0 0 0 100 0 

Widnes Market Refurbishment 38 38 457 918 1,294 10 0 

Widnes Land Purchases 2 2 235 235 235 0 0 

Former Simms Cross Caretakers 
House 

0 0 14 14 14 0 0 

Equality Act Improvement Works 33 33 83 113 300 300 300 

P
age 4



Directorate/Department 
 

Actual 
Expenditure 

to Date 
 
 
 

£’000 

2017/18 Cumulative Capital Allocation 

 
Capital 

Allocation 
2018/19 

 
 
 

£’000 
 

 
Capital 

Allocation 
2019/20 

 
 
 

£’000 
 

Quarter 1 
 

£’000 

Quarter 2 
 

£’000 

Quarter 3 
 

£’000 

Quarter 4 
 

£’000 

Mersey Gateway        

Land Acquisitions 130 130 222 313 2,254 11,284 0 

Development Costs 366 366 1,718 2,557 2,861 0 0 

Loan Interest During Construction 996 996 1,840 1,840 1,840 0 0 

Construction Costs 35,000 35,000 67,500 67,500 67,500 0 0 

Mersey Gateway Liquidity Fund 0 0 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 

        

Other        

Risk Management 0 0 50 100 155 120 120 

Fleet Replacements 143 145 600 900 1,500 556 1,317 

        

Policy, Planning & 
Transportation 

       

Bridge & Highway Maintenance 212 225 698 2,108 4,236 1,546 0 

Integrated Transport & Network 
Management 

46 50 190 330 460 0 0 

Street Lighting – Structural 
Maintenance & Upgrades 

1 0 1,235 2,470 3,706 200 200 

STEPS Programme 28 30 330 660 978 0 0 

Silver Jubilee Bridge Major 
Maintenance 

0 0 0 0 4,880 4,900 0 

        

        

Total Enterprise Community & 
Resources 

38,584 38,628 91,962 105,473 120,353 23,640 4,353 

P
age 5



Directorate/Department 
 

Actual 
Expenditure 

to Date 
 
 
 

£’000 

2017/18 Cumulative Capital Allocation 

 
Capital 

Allocation 
2018/19 

 
 
 

£’000 
 

 
Capital 

Allocation 
2019/20 

 
 
 

£’000 
 

Quarter 1 
 

£’000 

Quarter 2 
 

£’000 

Quarter 3 
 

£’000 

Quarter 4 
 

£’000 

People Directorate        

        

Adult Social Care        

Upgrade PNC 6 6 34 34 34 0 0 

ALD Bungalows 0 0 100 199 199 0 0 

Grangeway Court 0 0 0 140 140 0 0 

Bredon Reconfiguration 19 20 75 130 186 0 0 

Vine Street Reconfiguration 0 0 0 102 102 0 0 

Purchase of 2 adapted properties 0 0 0 0 520 0 0 

        

Complex Pool        

Disabled Facilities Grant 110 150 150 225 899 0 0 

Stairlifts (Adaptations Initiative) 27 50 150 225 300 0 0 

RSL Adaptations (Joint Funding) 72 75 100 150 200 0 0 

Madeline McKenna Residential 
Home 

0 0 450 450 450 0 0 

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

P
age 6



Directorate/Department 
 

Actual 
Expenditure 

to Date 
 
 
 

£’000 

2017/18 Cumulative Capital Allocation 

 
Capital 

Allocation 
2018/19 

 
 
 

£’000 
 

 
Capital 

Allocation 
2019/20 

 
 
 

£’000 
 

Quarter 1 
 

£’000 

Quarter 2 
 

£’000 

Quarter 3 
 

£’000 

Quarter 4 
 

£’000 

Schools Related        

Asset Management Data 0 0 2 3 5 0 0 

Capital Repairs 125 125 400 650 815 0 0 

Asbestos Management 2 2 10 30 38 0 0 

Schools Access Initiative 0 0 30 55 55 0 0 

Basic Need Projects 0 0 0 0 556 0 283 

School Modernisation Projects 19 19 30 68 68 0 0 

Lunts Heath Primary School 1 1 75 150 200 5 0 

Universal Infant School Meals 2 2 2 2 2 0 0 

Early Education for 2yr olds 8 8 8 8 8 0 0 

Hale Primary 0 0 3 3 3 0 0 

Fairfield Primary School 371 371 655 655 655 10 0 

Weston Point Primary School 2 2 70 110 128 4 0 

Kitchen Gas Safety  0 0 10 30 50 0 0 

Small Capital Works 6 6 30 75 106 0 0 

        

Total People Directorate 770 837 2,384 3,494 5,719 19 283 

        

        

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME 39,354 39,465 94,346 108,967 126,072 23,659 4,636 

Anticipated Slippage (20%)     -9,714 -4,732 -927 

      9,714 4,732 

TOTAL 39,354 39,465 94,346 108,967 116,358 28,641 8,441 

        

 

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO:  Executive Board  
 
DATE: 21 September 2017 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director, Enterprise, Community  

and Resources 
 
PORTFOLIO: Physical Environment 
 
SUBJECT: Murdishaw Regeneration 
 
WARDS: Norton North, Norton South 
  
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to request approval to amend the capital 

programme to allow funding for the improvement of the Murdishaw area 
to be included following the capital receipt from the sale of the former 
Jolly Brewer pub.  

 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDED: That the Council be recommended to amend the 

capital programme to include £46,000 for the Murdishaw Estate 
Regeneration programme to provide the Council’s contribution to 
the actions and activities outlined in this report, to be funded from 
the Capital Receipt received for the Jolly Brewer Pub. 
 
  

3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Following the closure and subsequent demolition of the former Jolly 

Brewer Public House, the Council has been working closely with local 
partners to seek to reinvigorate Murdishaw local centre. This is in 
response to trader and resident concerns that the local centre was no 
longer a safe and attractive place to visit. 

 
3.2 In 2014, Liverpool Housing Trust (LHT) secured planning permission to 

deliver 18 new homes and a new relocated car park to the front of the 
local centre retail units. The Council sold the former Jolly Brewer site to 
LHT and the capital receipt for this will be £46,000 to be received 
following the completion of the car park.  Construction commenced in 
November 2016 and should be complete by November 2017. 

 
3.3  Subsequently to this, the Council has been working closely with LHT and 

other key stakeholders to explore the potential for a wider regeneration 
programme for Murdishaw. 

 
3.4 A series of workshops with stakeholders, including housing associations,  

the police, the CCG and a number of Council departments, identified the 

Page 9 Agenda Item 9b



strengths and weaknesses of Murdishaw and agreed the need for a 
‘collective vision’ for the neighbourhood in order to ensure that 
respective partners’ investments are targeted at the areas of greatest 
impact. In October 2016, Mott Macdonald were appointed as an 
independent consultant to drive this visioning process and undertake the 
pre-masterplanning activities such as baseline analysis, stakeholder 
engagement and an agreed vision statement. 

 
3.5 On behalf of the partners, LHT submitted an application to the Homes & 

Communities Agency (HCA) Estate Regeneration Fund for funding for 
the feasibility and masterplanning consultancy fees. An award of 
£72,240 enabling grant was awarded in March 2017. This funding will be 
used for housing market assessment, visioning document, development 
brief and initial spatial planning for key sites, resident and stakeholder 
engagement and a detailed masterplan and options for key sites. 

 
3.6 To date, two pieces of work have been commissioned and completed – 

the Visioning Framework and a housing market analysis by consultants 
Arc4.   

 
3.7 In conjunction with the visioning exercise, it is proposed that a series of 

small scale projects are identified and delivered in the Murdishaw area to 
target areas of most need, further improve the local environment and 
demonstrate the commitment to the further regeneration of the area. 

 
 The proposed ‘quick win’ projects have been identified as: 
 

 Signage and improvements to the footpath network to make the 
area less intimidating for users and improve the existing key 
pedestrian linkages 

 Improvements to existing green space to make the areas more 
accessible for leisure uses, particularly the Mersey Valley area 
and Gorsewood 

 Existing local centre - possible improvement to the existing retail 
units and surrounding space 

 Anti-social behaviour – explore other public realm enhancements 
to minimise and design out anti-social behaviour  

 
The projects will be prioritised, costed and delivered by the Regeneration 
Team in collaboration with the Portfolio Holder and respective ward 
councillors.     

 
3.8   In order to progress the scheme, a steering group with representatives 

from the key stakeholders will be formed. The steering group will 
oversee the development of the options, spatial planning and masterplan 
and also lead on resident engagement as proposals emerge. 

 
 
 
 

Page 10



4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 

The proposals accord with the Core Strategy and support the Corporate 
Plan and Urban Renewal corporate priority.  

 
 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The projects identified as Murdishaw regeneration ‘quick wins’ will be 
funded through the reinvestment of capital receipts from the land sale. 
The projects will be costed and prioritised to ensure they are deliverable 
within the limit of the funding identified.  
 
The vision and masterplanning exercise will identify funding and 
investment opportunities for the delivery of a wider regeneration 
programme. 

 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES  

 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 

Improvements to the Murdishaw neighbourhood will improve the life 
chances for children and young people in Halton. The local schools have 
been engaged in the discussions to date. 

 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 

Improvements to the wider neighbourhood will exploit the excellent 
connectivity and improve access to employment opportunities across the 
borough and in neighbouring towns and cities. 

 
6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 

Much of the Murdishaw neighbourhood is in the top 15% for the Index of 
Multiple deprivation and demonstrates poor health demographics in the 
key areas of cardio-vascular, mental health and diabetes. The CCG have 
been engaged as a key partner and improvements to the neighbourhood 
will impact on the improvement of people’s health and wellbeing. 

 
6.4 A Safer Halton 
 

Improvements to the local centre including improvements to footpaths 
and removal of overgrown areas will improve the physical nature of the 
route and improve perceptions of safety. 

 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 

The improvements to the local centre and wider neighbourhood 
contribute to Halton’s urban renewal priority to transform the urban fabric 

Page 11



and infrastructure. The wider neighbourhood improvements will help to 
create a vibrant and accessible place where people are proud to live. 
 

 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 

 
The risks associated with this are not deemed to be so significant as to 
require a full risk assessment. The local centre improvements will be fully 
costed and project managed by the Regeneration Team to ensure that 
the scheme is delivered on budget and on time.  

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 

 
The proposed improvements will benefit all members of the local 
community. 

 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Document 
 

Place of Inspection Contact Officer 

Murdishaw Visioning 
Framework 

Regeneration, 5th Floor 
Municipal Building 

Helen Roberts  

Arc4 Report The 
Regeneration of 
Murdishaw 

Regeneration, 5th Floor 
Municipal Building 

Helen Roberts  

Page 12



 

REPORT TO:  Council 
  
DATE:      18 October 2017 
  
REPORTING OFFICER: Operational Director – Legal & Democratic 
 Services 
 
PORTFOLIO: Transportation 
  
SUBJECT: Mersey Gateway Bridge – River Mersey (Mersey 

Gateway Bridge) Order 2011 as modified by the 
River Mersey (Mersey Gateway Bridge) 
(Amendment) Order 2016; and the Mersey 
Gateway Bridge and A533 (Silver Jubilee Bridge) 
Road User Charging Scheme Order 

 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report asks the Council to note the Operational Director - Legal & 

Democratic Services delegated decision to:  
 
1.1.1 lift the suspension of The Mersey Gateway Bridge and A533 (Silver Jubilee 

Bridge) Roads User Charging Scheme Order 2016 (“RUCSO”) except in 
relation to its application to the Silver Jubilee Bridge; 

  
1.1.2  thereby bring the RUCSO back into effect in relation to the Mersey Gateway 

Bridge;   
 
1.1.3  impose the charging scheme from the date that the Mersey Gateway Bridge 

is operational and fully open to all traffic the "Permission to Use Date"); 
and 

   
1.1.4 in doing so, confirm the charges to be levied for use of the Mersey Gateway 

Bridge by different classes of vehicles. 
 
1.2 Following an application made by the Council on 26 March 2015, the 

Secretary of State on 18 August 2016 made the River Mersey (Mersey 
Gateway Bridge) (Amendment) Order 2016 (“Amendment Order”), thereby 
modifying the River Mersey (Mersey Gateway Bridge) Order 2011 (“2011 
Order”). 

 
1.3 The Council resolved to make the RUCSO on 14 September 2016 in the 

form attached at Appendix A.  The RUCSO was made subject to the 
application of certain measures (reflecting the delay between the making of 
the RUCSO and the Permission to Use Date) to be implemented by the 
Operational Director - Legal & Democratic Services pursuant to delegated 
authority granted by the Council. 

 

Page 13 Agenda Item 9c



 

1.4 The Operational Director - Legal & Democratic Services has exercised his 
delegated powers.  This report now asks the Council to note those 
decisions and actions, which have brought the RUCSO fully into effect in 
respect of the Mersey Gateway Bridge to enable charges to be imposed for 
use of the Mersey Gateway Bridge from the Permission to Use Date.  

 
2.0  RECOMMENDATION 
 
 The Council is recommended to note the Operational Director - Legal 

& Democratic Services delegated decision to:  
 

 1) lift the suspension of RUCSO except in relation to the Silver 
Jubilee Bridge; 

  
2) thereby bring the RUCSO back into effect in relation to the 

Mersey Gateway Bridge; 
 

 3) impose the charging scheme from the Permission to Use Date;    
and 

   
 4)  in doing so confirm the charges to be levied for use of the Mersey 

Gateway Bridge by different classes of vehicles. 
 
3.0 BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The 2011 Order has been amended by the Amendment Order with effect 

from 14 September 2016. 
 
3.2 The 2011 Order now allows: 
 
3.2.1 a RUCSO to be made in relation to the Silver Jubilee Bridge and Mersey 

Gateway Bridge; and 
 
3.2.2 the application of the Road User Charging Scheme (Penalty Charges, 

Adjudication and Enforcement) (England) Regulations 2013 (“Enforcement 
Regulations”) to charges collected by the Council under the RUCSO or, 
with some changes to the application of the Enforcement Regulations, tolls 
collected by the Council under the 2011 Order. 

 
3.3 The RUCSO was made by the Council pursuant to the resolution of 14 

September 2016 for the following reasons: 
 
3.3.1 the Mersey Gateway Bridge will operate under a “free flow” environment, 

rather than with the use of barrier toll payment stations; 
 

3.3.2 tolls will be paid following a user crossing the Mersey Gateway Bridge; and 
 

3.3.3 the toll/charge operator requires powers to enforce payment after the use of 
the Mersey Gateway Bridge, since barriers will not be present to prevent 
those crossing the Bridge unless they have paid, 

Page 14



 

 with the mechanism to achieve this being making the RUCSO in respect 
 of the Bridges, to which the Enforcement Regulations could be applied. 
 

3.4 The RUCSO was also made subject to the application of certain measures, 
reflecting the delay between the making of the RUCSO and the Permission 
to Use Date, to be implemented by the Operational Director - Legal & 
Democratic Services pursuant to delegated authority granted by the Council 
during the same meeting on 14 September 2016. 

 
3.5 In particular, the Council resolved to make the RUCSO in the specified form 

and delegate authority to the Operational Director - Legal and Democratic 
Services to make non-material or consequential amendments to the 
RUCSO necessary to give it effect, as well as bring the charging scheme 
under the RUCSO into effect on 1 July 2017 provided it had been made.   

 
3.6 The Council also resolved that the charging scheme should be suspended 

with effect from that date until the Permission to Use Date. 
 
3.7 It delegated authority to the Operational Director - Legal & Democratic 

Services to take all necessary steps to: 
 
3.6.1 bring the RUCSO into effect; 
 
3.6.2 suspend the charging scheme until the Permission to Use Date; and 
 
3.6.3 lift the suspension and impose the charging scheme from the Permission to 

Use Date. 
 

3.8 In August 2017 the Permission to Use Date was considered to be 
sufficiently imminent for the Operational Director - Legal & Democratic 
Services to exercise his delegated authority to lift the suspension, bring the 
RUCSO into effect, impose the charging scheme and confirm the levels of 
charge for classes of vehicles using the Mersey Gateway Bridge.   

 
3.9  The relevant Notification Record of Officer Decisions recording the 

Operational Director - Legal & Democratic Services' exercise of his 
delegated authority can be found at Appendix B, along with a copy of a 
notice published in each of the Liverpool Echo and Official Gazette on 
Thursday, 31 August 2017. 

 
3.10 The Operational Director - Legal & Democratic Services' actions confirm 

that the charges to be levied for users of the Mersey Gateway Bridge are as 
follows: 

 
  
Class 1 vehicles -  
motorcycles 

Class 2 vehicle -  
van and car 

Class 3 vehicles - 
more than 
3.5 tonnes but 
less than 12 tonnes  

Class 4 vehicles - 
More than 12 tonnes 

£0.00 £2.00 £6.00 £8.00 

Page 15



 

4.0 NEXT STEPS 
 
4.1  The Council is asked to note and record the actions taken by the 

Operational Director - Legal & Democratic Services in accordance with the 
terms of the proposed resolution in paragraph 2.0. 

 
4.2  For the avoidance of doubt, the Council is not being asked to take any steps 

in relation to the application of the RUCSO to the Silver Jubilee Bridge, in 
respect of which the application of the RUCSO remains suspended. 

 
5.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Not applicable. This report is for information only. 
  
6.0 RISK 
 
 Not applicable. This report is for information only. 
  
7.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY 
 
 Not applicable. This report is for information only.  
 
  
8.0 CONCLUSION 
 
 In light of the information contained in this report, the Council is asked to 

make the resolutions detailed at paragraph 2.0 of this Report. 
 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGOUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 None under the meaning of the Act. 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT: Council 
 
DATE: 18 October 2017  
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Chief Executive  
 
PORTFOLIO:                          Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Transport for the North – Consideration of draft 

Regulations      
 
WARD: Boroughwide 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Council as Local Highway Authority to 
consider consenting to the making of Regulations by the Secretary of State 
to establish Transport for the North (TfN) as a Sub –National Transport 
Body under section 102J of the Local Transport Act 2008. The consent of 
each Highway Authority within the area of each Combined Authority which 
is a Constituent Authority of TfN is required to the making of Regulations by 
the Secretary of State because the Regulations contain provisions giving 
TfN highway powers to be exercised concurrently with the Local Highway 
Authorities. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION: The Council be recommended to formally 
consent under section 102J of the Local Transport Act 2008 to the 
making by the Secretary of State, of Regulations to establish 
Transport for the North as a Sub-National Transport Body and giving 
TfN concurrent highway powers as set out in the draft regulations 
supplied to the Council entitled ‘Sub-national Transport Body 
(Transport for the North) Regulations 2017’. 

  
3.0 BACKGROUND 

 

3.1 General 

 

Members will be aware of the role of TfN. It comprises a number of 
constituent authorities. The Council’s involvement with TfN is indirect since 
its role is via the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority.  To date TfN 
has been reported as being principally involved with rail transport. 
However, it will have a role in respect of highways and this involves 
working with highways authorities which are not necessarily constituent 
bodies of TfN. In promoting legislation which impinges on the functions of 
highways authorities the consent of those authorities is required. Further 
back ground is given below: 
 

 

Page 37 Agenda Item 9d



3.2 

3.2.1 

 

The proposal submitted by TfN by its the Constituent Authorities 

The Proposal submitted by the Constituent Authorities requested the 
following powers and functions: 

 
a) To prepare a Transport Strategy for the Combined Area in accordance 

with section 102I of the Local Transport Act 2008; 
b) To provide advice to the Secretary of State about the exercise of the 

transport functions in the Combined Area; 
c) To be a Statutory Partner with the Secretary of State in both road and 

rail investment processes and to be responsible for setting the 
objectives and priorities for strategic road and rail investments in the 
Combined Area; 

d) To be consulted in relation to rail franchise agreements for services to 
and from or within its area; 

e) To co-manage with the Secretary of State the TransPennine Express 
and Northern Rail Franchises; 

f) To co-ordinate the carrying out of specified transport functions that are 
exercisable by its different Constituent Authorities with a view to 
improving the effectiveness and efficiency of the carrying out of those 
functions; 

g) To promote and co-ordinate road transport schemes;  
h) To make proposals to the Secretary of State for the transfer of 

transport functions to TfN;   
i) To make other proposals to the Secretary of State about the role and 

functions of TfN;   
j) To undertake Smart Ticketing within the Combined Area;   
k) To promote and oppose local or personal bills in Parliament;   
l) To pay Capital Grants to support the funding and delivery of joint 

projects;   
m) To exercise powers to construct highways and to acquire land for that 

purpose under section 8(1), 24 and 239 of the Highways Act 1980 
concurrently with local Highway Authorities 

 
 In carrying out these functions TfN would act as a Statutory Partner with 
the Secretary of State and take devolved responsibilities from the 
Secretary of State. It would exercise a co-ordinating role in relation to 
specified transport functions 
 

3.2.2 The Proposal also contained the following key provisions: 
 

a) All Constituent Authorities will be entitled to appoint a representative to 
TfN, such representative to normally be the Elected Mayor, Chair, 
Leader or Member with delegated responsibility for transport; 

b) Decisions will be expected to be unanimous but where voting is 
required votes will be weighted in accordance with the populations of 
the Constituent Authorities; 

c) Decisions in relation to the Budget, the adoption of a Transport Strategy 
and the Constitution will require a Super Majority; 

Page 38



d) Funding will be provided by the Secretary of State and no decision to 
require financial contributions from Constituent Authorities can be made 
without the agreement of each Authority; 

e) There will be appropriate mechanisms for Scrutiny of TfN’s decisions; 
f) Rail North Limited will be wholly owned by TfN; 
g) A wider Partnership Board including representatives of government 

bodies and the LEPs will be set up to inform TfN’s decision making. 
 

3.3 The Secretary of State’s Response to the proposal 

3.3.1 The Secretary of State has now formally responded to the Proposal and 
has indicated that he is minded to make Regulations creating TfN as the 
first Sub-National Transport Body with the following functions: 

 
a) The preparation of a Northern Transport Strategy; 
b) The provision of advice on the North’s priorities, as a Statutory 

Partner in the Department’s investment processes; 
c) The coordination of regional transport activities, (such as smart 

ticketing), and the co-management of the TransPennine Express 
and Northern rail franchises through the acquisition of Rail North 
Ltd.  

 
3.4 Regulations 

3.4.1 Regulations have now been drafted which once they are passed will confer 
on TfN the majority of the functions and powers requested in the Proposal. 
Before the Secretary of State can make the Regulations he must obtain 
consent to the making of the Regulations from each of the 19 Constituent 
Authorities and also consent to the granting of concurrent highway powers 
from each of the Highway Authorities within TfN’s area. The Authorities 
which are County Councils or Unitary Authorities are Highway Authorities 
but the Combined Authorities are not and in these areas the individual 
Highway Authorities are being asked to give their consent to the granting of 
highway powers within the Regulations.  
 

3.5 Highway Functions 

3.5.1 The highway powers which are contained in the Regulations are firstly the 
following powers of the Secretary of State in relation to the construction of 
trunk roads which may be delegated down to TfN: 
 
a) Section 6(5) Highways Act 1980 ( power to enter into agreements 

for works relating to trunk roads)  
b) Sections 105A – 105C Highways Act 1980 (functions relating to 

environmental impact assessments) 
c)  Sections 239 to 240 and 246 Highways Act 1980 (powers to acquire 

land in connection with highways) 
d) section 250 Highways Act 1980 (powers relating to the acquisition of 

powers over land) 
 

Page 39



3.5.2 Secondly the following powers under the Highways Act 1980 are conferred 
on TfN concurrently with the local Highway Authority.  

a) Section 8(1) (power to enter agreements with local highways authorities 
etc for doing certain works) 

b) section 24(2) (power of local highway authority to construct new 
highways) 

c) section 25(i) (powers to enter into agreement for creation of footpath 
etc) 

d) section 26 (i) (compulsory powers for creation of footpaths etc) 
e) various functions in sections 239, 240, 246 and 250 relating to the 

acquisition of land for highway purposes 

 
3.6 Importantly Regulations 14 and 15 taken together provide that TfN will not 

be able to exercise any of the highway powers which they hold 
concurrently with the Highway Authorities unless the manner in which it 
proposes to exercise the function has been approved by each of the 
Highway Authorities through whose area the highway will pass. 
 

3.7 There is no intention that TfN will itself become a Highway Authority and as 
set out above the Regulations make it clear that before these powers may 
be exercised TfN will need to obtain the express consent of the relevant 
Highway Authority to the manner in which the powers would be exercised. 
These powers would therefore only be exercised in circumstances where 
all the local Highway Authorities consider that there would be a benefit in 
TfN carrying out the work. 
 

3.8 It is intended that before TfN exercises any transport powers or functions it 
holds concurrently with any of the Constituent Authorities or Highways 
Authorities within the TfN area, TfN will enter into a written Protocol with 
the Constituent Authorities or the local Highway Authorities covering the 
way in which the functions will be exercised. 
 

4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The promoting or opposing new legislation is a policy consideration for the 
Council and reserved to full Council under the Constitution (as Council 
matter number 36). 
 

5.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

None.  
 

Page 40



Page 41 Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43 Agenda Item 13



Page 44



Page 45 Agenda Item 14



Page 46



Document is Restricted

Page 47 Agenda Item 16a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	9a 2017/18 Revised Capital Programme (Minute EXB40 refers)
	9b Murdishaw Regeneration (Minute EXB 44 refers)
	9c Mersey Gateway/Silver Jubilee Bridge RUCSO
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	MG Officer Decision

	9d Transport for the North – Consideration of draft Regulations
	12 Notice of Motion -Public Sector Pay
	13 Notice of Motion - Universal Credit
	14 Notice of Motion - Modern Day Slavery
	16a Acquisition of Broseley House, Widnes (Minute EXB 46 refers)

